CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2014
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Gavle, Goss, Greenman, Jouron, SkluzaocekiHayden were present.

James Richter I, Planning and Economic Developriviariager, Latika Bhide and Elizabeth Maxwell,
both Planners, and Rick Paulson, Building Commigsipwere present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise téhga?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attendan
in the Pledge.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting was being tedenow as well as recorded for future playback on
the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 5, 2014 SPECIAL PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION MEETING

Mr. Jouron moved to approve the minutes from therary 5, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting as presented. Mr. Skluzacek seconded dtierm On roll call, members Batastini, Gavle,
Goss, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Hayden voted aye. bdentEsposito and Greenman abstained. Motion
passed.

2013-33 RUMFORD-BUELOW — 175 & 179 Edgewater PUBLIC HEARING

This petition was referred back to the PZC fromy@buncil.

Variation from Article 4-700 Fences, Walls and ®eriag to allow a 4-foot high fence within the front
yard setback.

Mr. Hayden stated that the petitioners were stiler oath from the previous PZC meeting.

Michael Rumford and Bob Buelow were present togsent their petition. Mr. Hayden said there are
no changes in the request that they had previalistyissed. Mr. Buelow said they have provide@istt
of support from their neighbors, which are in tlaehets. He also wanted to review the Findings of
Fact. Mr. Buelow said they have been working as $ince last May. Their intent was to replace an
existing fence that is in disrepair and replaceitlh a 4 foot wrought-iron type fence to keep thamily
and pets safe. They believe that a 3-foot fencetisafe and even the City Code requires a 4févate
for a pool. He added that he has submitted a péoma pool for his yard. Mr. Buelow continued
stating that the precedent was set in 2005 to al®@afoot privacy fence along the Main Beach boat
launch and 4-foot privacy fence along the othee sard. When they applied for the fence permeyth
were not aware of the rear/front yard classificafior lake lots. Also there was nothing on thecien
handout stating that lake lots are different.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 2

Mr. Buelow reviewed the Findings of Fact detaillngv they meet each of the criteria. He said lakes
lots are unique with 2 front yards per the Cityassification. The setbacks are based on their
neighbors’ setbacks and not a specific distanage aher zoning classifications in the City. Helad
that the hardship was not created by them but é&yity’s Ordinances. Mr. Buelow said the fencd wil
not be detrimental to the neighborhood and it walitdinish light or air to adjacent properties. ¥he
goal is to protect their families and pets from tfadfic on Edgewater. They do not want a solidcke
that would block views of the lake.

Mr. Rumford showed a Power Point presentation efftoposed fence as well as an existing fence that
was cut down from 6 feet to 3 feet and has dangeedges. He said a big issue is the speed on
Edgewater and showed a photo of the speed limtlsggng covered by foliage. He showed the plats of
surveys for the properties and they are requestimgiform height of 4 feet all around the propettie
They don’'t want to impede their neighbors’ viewdlo lake. Mr. Rumford said the fence handout
available when they were applying for the fencerddtimention any restrictions for lake lots and now
the handout has been revised to include the infooma They are requesting a uniform 4-foot tall
ornamental fence.

Mr. Buelow said their neighbors across the streetra@ated differently than they are because of the
location of the lots. He said electric fences tlardrk for some dogs and they do have family member
come and they bring their dogs that are not traorethe electric fence.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Hayden asked the Commission how they wantgatdoeed: they could take no action now, which
would mean their prior vote stands; or make a res@mmendation to Council; or reaffirm their oridina
vote.

Mr. Greenman asked staff to review how this reqgesto this point. Ms. Maxwell reviewed the
process. She said that several UDO amendmentspreseented to City Council for review and possible
adoption including the fence height and type f&eldots. Council chose not to amend this sectfon o
the UDO. Mr. Goss said the ordinance has not atdindylr. Greenman agreed and stated that it is
important for the petitioners to discuss the Figdiof Fact. He supports what the petitionersrgreg

to accomplish here and he is not sure why thei€ityaking these property owners jump through so
many hoops. Mr. Greenman said he will not chang@tiginal vote.

Mr. Batastini said he was not in favor of the UDiGange and Council broke up the amendments in
sections — approving some and not others. He tamse for fences along the lake but understand
about the safety factor.

Mr. Hayden said the petitioners are requestindaod see-through fence but it states the variasdor



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 3

the fence height. Someone could come in for @ defice. Ms. Maxwell said if the Commission
determines there is a hardship, a restriction cbalgut in the variation that it must be a wrouigbit-
type fence.

Mr. Goss said he would prefer to affirm the Commois's previous vote.

Mr. Jouron asked about the pool permit. Mr. Buesaid he has submitted a permit for a pool. He is
not allowed to enjoy his yard the same as otheédeass of Crystal Lake.

Mr. Greenman polled the Commissioners if the Figdiaf Fact has been met. Seven of the members
said they had not been met.

Mr. Goss moved to reaffirm the Planning and Zor@amgnmission’s previous vote which was to deny
the Variation from Article 4-700 Fences, Walls é&uateening to allow a 4-foot-high fence within the
front yard setback for 175 & 179 Edgewater. Mrtd3&ni seconded the motion. On roll call, members
Batastini, Esposito, Gavle, Goss, Jouron, Skluzamet#t Hayden voted aye. Mr. Greenman voted no.
Motion passed.

Mr. Greenman feels the Findings of Fact have been Mhere are restrictions that are unique to that
property. The petitioners did not create the Hapds the City did.

2014-06 IAFIGLIOLA — 817 Village Road— PUBLIC HEARING

This petition was continued from the FebruadfyPZC meeting.

Variation to allow an encroachment in to the reggirear yard setback of 20 feet to allow a setlofck
12 feet for an addition to the residence.

Mr. Hayden stated the petitioners were still unohth from the previous PZC meeting.
John Jackowski, architect, and Mr. lafigliola wpresent to discuss the petition.
Mr. Hayden thanked the petitioners for providing ghotos. They were very helpful.

Mr. Jackowski said the encroachment into the sé&tizsaessentially the same as the current decktbut i
would be a building instead.

There was no one in the public who wished to speathis matter. The public portion was closed at
this time.

Mr. Goss asked if they had contacted the HomeowAssociation. Mr. lafigliola said he had tried
several times but has not received a reply. MisSGasked if the drainage on the lot was ok with
Engineering. Ms. Bhide said yes.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 4

Mr. Jouron said he spoke with the President ofAtbsociation earlier in the week and she knew ngthin
about this request. Mr. lafigliola said he wastaating a gentleman who did not get back to him.

Mr. Hayden said that the Commission does not ndyntee into consideration private covenants
during review of petitions.

Mr. Batastini said the photos help a lot. Thisiadd is in character with the homes in the
neighborhood and it meets the Findings of Fact.s&ld the lot is very shallow and it would be htrd
do something reasonable.

Mr. Greenman asked about the lot. Ms. Bhide daddt meets the required square footage and area f
lots in that district but a typical lot is usuatlgeper and less wide.

Mr. Hayden thanked the petitioner for the additianbormation and he happily supports the projdtt.
also meets the impervious surface requirements.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve a Variation to allawencroachment in to the required rear yard
setback of 20 feet to allow a setback of 13 feeafoaddition to the residence at 817 Village Redl
the following conditions:

1. Approved plans, to reflect staff and advisorgioiocomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Application, lafigliola, received 1-20-14
B. Plat of Survey/Site Plan, Decker, dated 6-7r86gived 1-20-14
C. Plans/Elevations, Jackowski, received 2-13-2014

2. The proposed addition shall be architecturathlysistent with the existing residence with respect
style, building materials, roof lines and colors.

3. The addition, including the overhang/eave calot&ted no closer than 13 feet to the rear prgfieg.

4. All existing grading and drainage patterns nfagsiaintained as originally designed and built amd
adverse drainage conditions to the neighboringengmre permitted.

5. Location of any rear yard underground utilityvéges must be confirmed to avoid any potentials
conflicts with the proposed addition.

6. The faux windows underneath the addition willibed with a translucent film to minimize the viadu
impact of the storage from neighboring properties.

7. The petitioner shall address@mments of the Community Development, Public VBpBire Rescue
and Police Departments.

Mr. Skluzacek seconded the motion. On roll cdllpeembers voted aye. Motion passed.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 5

2014-09 900 PYOTT ROAD- PUBLIC HEARING
Variations from Article 3-200 B6 to allow a buildjraddition to extend 40 feet into the required &60tf
rear yard setback and to allow an impervious saertaverage of 81% rather than the 70% permitted.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.

David Schaefer, architect, was present to reprakeryetition. Mr. Schaefer said they would likeptut
an addition on the rear of the building in two @®sThe lot as it exists currently as 77% lot cage
and because the additions would be over existingrmalot, the increase in lot coverage would dmgy
to 81%. He said the plans were revised basedeodmments they received from staff. Mr. Schaefer
said the adjacent property to the west is zonedithRatial” and it is the City’s water tank location
They are asking for a reduction in the setbaclOtéegt instead of 20 feet because of the water. tifik
Schaefer said a variation was granted to the ptppzthe south for setbacks on the north and west
property line. Also there is an oversized detenticea on the property to the south. This property
the adjacent property are owned by the same peasaiithey will be able to connect to it if necegsar
He said putting on the additions will increase amgpient in the area.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Goss asked what the size of the detentioniare®r. Schaefer said he did not have that
information. Mr. Goss asked if Public Works hag aoncerns with the building addition coming right
up to the sewer main easement. Ms. Maxwell saiff istasking that the second phase be pulled tsack
allow trucks to get to the sewer main easemergetied. Mr. Goss said he is concerned with the
parking of employees from the business to the narthis lot. With the additions, there will besju
enough required parking for this site. Mr. Espmsaisked if this is a 24 hour operation. Mr. Sceaef
said no itis 8 to 5. Mr. Esposito said most peapho go to the restaurant to the north use thiafter

5 so he doesn't believe there will be a problem.

Mr. Jouron asked what they will be manufacturinghi@ additions. Mr. Schaefer said the owner has
antique cars and they will be stored there as agehaving a wash bay.

Mr. Skluzacek is concerned with the impervious acef

Mr. Greenman asked what the setback would be iath@&cent property were the same zoning. Ms.
Maxwell said 20 feet.

Mr. Gavle asked if there are well on the City'spedy. Ms. Maxwell said she did not believe thess
a well there.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 6

Mr. Batastini is concerned with the impervious aad too. It may be that this use has outgrowsitee
He understands that it is a variation for the seklaaljacent to the water tank, but that is a lot of
impervious surface. Mr. Schaefer said all of thie water is kept on-site and they may need todagd
wells.

Mr. Goss said this property has already lost prypsre to road widening and lost even more just
recently. Mr. Greenman asked what the size obtiggnal lot was before the land acquisition. Ms.
Maxwell said she was not sure. Mr. Hayden recdhed the front yard was much larger than it is
currently.

Mr. Hayden had a concern with noise since this @rygs near a residential area, which is where he
used to live. He said this is a good locationtias use since there is very little noise assodiatih it.

Mr. Greenman asked if the land had not been takan this property, would an addition be able to be
put on the street side of the existing buildingr. Bchaefer said he believed it would have, fitthet
office portion of the building would have been beén the two warehouses. Mr. Greenman said the
hardship is due to the land acquisition.

Mr. Goss moved to approve the Variations from Aeti@-200 B6 to allow a building addition to extend
40 feet into the required 50-foot rear yard setkawdk to allow an impervious surface coverage of 81%
rather than the 70% permitted at 900 Pyott Roal thi following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisopgitll recommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Schaefer, received 02/04/14)

B. Plat of Survey/Site Plan (Professional landvBying, Inc., dated 10/18/13, received 02/04/14)

2. Work with staff to add some landscape materials the east property line in the landscape
island and to the north and south of the parkingddelp screen the proposed overhead garage
doors of phase 2.

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, peéitioner shall provide a Plat of Easement
dedicating the MUE, along the western property,linereview and approval by staff. The
petitioner shall record the easement and provillylar and 5 paper copies to the City.

4. The petitioner shall address all of the revammments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building, and Planning and Economic Developmentddgpents.

5. Provide shared detention agreement with adjacétot for Staff to review, prior to City
Council meeting.

6. Ensure no shared parking agreement with the busess to the north is needed during their




PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 7

business hours.

Mr. Esposito seconded the motion. On roll callp@mbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2014-08 TERRA COTTA SHOPS - CL RIB HOUSE — 540 E. &rra Cotta Ave. — PUBLIC

HEARING

Text Amendment to define Bingo and to allow thena&pecial Use Permit in the B-2 Zoning District;
and a Special Use Permit to allow a Bingo at 540dtra Cotta Avenue.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.

Joe Gottemoller, attorney, and Dave Faccone, aperaéere present to represent the petitions. Mr.
Hayden stated that they would need to review eaphrately — UDO Amendment and then the Special
Use Permit request.

Mr. Faccone said the Crystal Lake Rib House justedaacross Route 176 to a larger location and with
a banquet hall. They would like to allow 501C3 @ines to run bingo in the banquet hall area. Tbia
good way for the charities to raise their neededi$uto continue their work.

Mr. Gottemoller said the City’s UDO does not havarago hall or parlor classification. The requisst
to allow bingo as a Special Use Permit in the “Be@hing district. He added that there are liceases
approvals through the State of Illinois that aguised along with specific record keeping.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraerthis petition. The public portion for the
UDO amendment was closed at this time.

Mr. Jouron said he helped write the original Bihaw for the State of lllinois. He asked what tyjje
license the petitioner has. Mr. Faccone said kelmarequired State license and the charities guust
through the process for themselves.

Mr. Batastini asked about parking requirements.. Miaxwell said they have not found any similar uses
close to Crystal Lake. Staff uses the Americamitas Association parking standards, which thel loo
at uses throughout the country not just our areéar@commend one (1) space per three (3) seats. Mr.
Batastini asked if the amendment would allow adtatone bingo hall or would it be required to have
restaurant with it. Ms. Maxwell said it can berstalone.

Mr. Goss said he is struggling with the “B-2” distrand added that churches hold bingo nights hey t
are in residential areas. Ms. Maxwell said she nescertain if the City requires a separate liecias
that activity or if it is considered part of theucbh’s use. She does know that we do not require a
Temporary Use Permit for bingo nights. Mr. Gosggasted a possible overlay district. His main



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 8

concern is how it is addressed in the UDO.

Mr. Batastini asked if a bingo hall is a good usé¢hiat district. Is that the district that woule best for
that type of use?

Mr. Hayden asked if this use was under the gamlgiatutes for the State. Ms. Maxwell said nois &
different statute. Mr. Hayden is concerned thet wWould put a foot in the door to allow slots, Igabs,
etc. Mr. Gottemoller said slot machines are nofdad raising. He said the specific statute isigieed
to raise revenue for non-profit groups.

Mr. Batastini asked if there was a similar use bgaMr. Gottemoller said years ago they had ading
hall at the Milk Pail in Dundee, but he isn’t sifré is still running.

Mr. Hayden said he would prefer more research Ine é@fore any decision is made. Mr. Batastini said
parking can be a challenge in the “B-2” districtvao

Mr. Greenman said this is only about bingo and ingtlkelse. He agreed that more information is
needed. Ms. Maxwell said she tried to researbhtithere is not a lot of information available lore.

Mr. Hayden asked if the petitioner had a timingiesand needed to move this forward to Council. Mr.
Gottemoller said if the Commission is not comfolegee would prefer that more information be
gathered. Mr. Goss suggested a month continuatdm Greenman suggested checking in areas with
higher retirement such as Arizona, Florida, etc.

Mr. Batastini moved to continue the UDO Amendmaestudssion to allow a Bingo Hall to the March
19, 2014 PZC meeting at allow Staff additional timeesearch bingo facilities in other communities.
Mr. Goss seconded the motion. On roll call, alhmbers voted aye. Motion passed.

Mr. Gottemoller asked if the Commission could dsscthe Special Use Permit even though they would
not be voting on it at this meeting.

Mr. Esposito recused himself from the Special Userit discussion due to a possible conflict of
interest.

Mr. Gottemoller said the bingo hall would be anibauy use to the restaurant. Mr. Hayden askediabo
the seating capacity. Mr. Faccone said the Fingallenent has determined their seating capacit94s 2
Mr. Gottemoller added that there are only 95 payldpaces there. The answer isn’t necessarily the
district this use would go into but the conditigdhat would need to be met. Not everyone is gainiget
able to meet the requirements the City placed ahube.

Mr. Hayden asked if a bingo hall should be an $agiluse to a restaurant or a stand alone. Mr.
Gottemoller said that is up to City Council. Mraydlen asked if people would just come in and play
bingo. Mr. Gottemoller said yes, but most peopéinto eat something.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 19, 2014
PAGE 9

Mr. Goss said no minors would be allowed in theduaat area while bingo is being played. Mr.
Gottemoller said that is correct. Mr. Goss saallilggest problem is parking. They will need adbt
parking off-site and not across Route 176. Overngrparking will be a big job.

Mr. Greenman said that shopping center is notgédiueasily getting around especially with the way
the lot is currently plowed. There is what is eodbtwo-way aisle and it is currently allowing odlgar
through. He doesn’t want to be put the petitianghe situation of having a parking problem. \Wed
to come up with options for them.

Mr. Gavle is concerned with parking as well. Hsodleels it is too small of a space for this use.

Mr. Jouron asked if more than one charity orgamomatan share in the fundraising for one bingo
session. Mr. Faccone said only one organizatiomag

Vince Esposito, former Grand Knight of the St. Tla@niKnights of Columbus, said this was brought
before the Knights several years ago. He feltvituald be a good opportunity for the members tegai
money for the charities the Knights support. Mspésito feels that this is no different than NicRizza
holding their fundraiser nights with 10% of the peeds going to an organization. He believes this
would be a great thing to be available to orgamonat

There was no one else in the public who wishedtoroent on this petition. The public portion foe th
Special Use Permit was closed at this time.

There were no other comments from the Commissioners

Mr. Batastini moved to continue the Special UsenRediscussion for a Bingo Hall at 540 E. Terra
Cotta Ave. to the March 19, 2014 PZC meeting. Muron seconded the motion. On roll call, all
members voted aye, except Mr. Esposito who didrotgd. Motion passed.

REPORT FROM PLANNING
- SMK Center — 835 Virginia St. — SUP to allow T&pair in “M” District
- City of Crystal Lake - City pump house - Rout& X/ Erick St. — Variation for addition

Mr. Richter stated there are no items schedulethfomeeting on March 5, 2014 so the meeting weill b
cancelled. The next regularly scheduled meetidigogiMarch 19, 2014.

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
There were no comments from the Commissioners.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 p.m.



